
 

Planning Board  January 8, 2014 

Township of Ocean                                                                               Minutes 

                                                                                                                                             

  

SPECIAL MEETING: 7:00 P.M. Public Meeting Room 

Deal and Monmouth Roads 

Oakhurst 

           

MEMBERS 

PRESENT: 

 

Anthony Andrisano 

Fred Brody 

Carlo Gallello 

William Garofalo 

Warren Goode, V Chair 

Estelle Klose 

Stephen Levy 

John Verrilli 

MEMBERS     

ABSENT:      Joseph DiBenedetto, Alt II 

 Ray Menell, Alt I 

                    Thomas Means, Chair 

                 

                     

                   

   

 

OTHERS PRESENT:     Sanford Brown, Esquire, 

Martin Arbus, Esquire, 
Andrew Brannen,  

Board Attorney 

Township Attorney 
Township Manager 

 William Fitzgerald, PE 

James Higgins, PP, 

Mary Beth Lonergan, PP 

Marianne Wilensky, 

Board Engineer 

Board Planner 

Affordable Housing Planner 

Planning Administrator 

 Rachel Goncharko, Planning Board Secretary 

Recording Secretary 

 

Vice Chairman Goode announced that the notice requirements for the Open 

Public Meetings Act have been satisfied, a copy of the notice having been sent to the 
Asbury Park Press and the Coaster, posted in the Township Hall, and filed in the Office of 

the Township Clerk on December 24, 2013. 

 

CONTINUED HEARING ON The Master Plan Reexamination  

 

 Township Attorney Martin Arbus, Esquire gave a history of the property which had 

previously received approvals. That zoning was revoked by the Township and the 

applicant at the time agreed to withdraw their approvals. He also went through a history 

of the four affordable housing lawsuits that were filed by developers against the township 

for four different properties, including this one.  

 

 Mr. Arbus explained the history of the current proposal for this property from Toll 

Brothers, including the first proposal at 344 units which the Township rejected. He said 
eventually Toll Brothers presented the current proposal for 102 units with a contribution of 

$2.6 million to construct low/moderate income units off-site or 114 units including 

low/moderate income housing units on site. He addressed the concerns about the 

setbacks and buffers, saying that developers are not obligated to provide buffers, but that 

this one is willing to do that. With regard to the concern about the number of school 
children that would be generated by the development, he explained that routinely a 

development like this would produce significantly less children than single family homes.  

 

 Board Attorney Sanford Brown, Esquire had the Township Manager, Andrew 

Brannen and the special Planner for affordable housing, Mary Beth Lonergan, PP from 

Clarke Caton Hintz, sworn in. With no further questions from the Board, the hearing was 

opened to the public for questions.  

 

 Al Kerecman, 748 Bowne Road, asked where in the ordinance the proposed R-1 

overlay zone was described. Board Planner James Higgins, PP explained that this is not a 
zoning hearing. He said that an overlay zone can be developed over the existing R-1 zone 

and that it would be developed by the governing body. He said that there would be 

ample time for the public to attend meetings where the proposed zone would be 

introduced. Mr. Kerecman asked about land swaps and Mr. Arbus said that that is  

 



Planning Board  Page 2   

Township of Ocean    January 8, 2014  

 

between the developers and that the Township does not get involved. Mr. Kerecman said 

that there are many lots on this piece of property. Mr. Higgins said that it is one parcel 

made of up multiple lots. Mr. Kerecman asked about the proposals from Toll Brothers. Mr. 

Arbus explained that the town rejected proposals with more units until this current proposal 

was considered. Mr. Kerecman asked about the zone that was previously approved for 

the Apple Farms application. Mr. Arbus explained that it was a similar zone and the 

Planning Board had approved 75 units but the zone was revoked and is not in effect even 

though it is still reflected in the current master plan.  

 

 Mr. Kerecman asked why the zoning has shifted to being created for the specific 

needs of the developers. He said that it seems that the Township waits for developers who 

take them to court under COAH.  

 

 Ms. Lonergan explained the 1st and 2nd round of COAH obligations in the 1980s and 

1990s when 873 affordable housing units were required. She explained that now the Town 

is only required to provide 216 units. The planner for the Superior Court, Frank Banish, 

reviewed the Township’s proposed affordable housing plan and said that the realistic 

development potential is 240 units, but the plan has not been approved by the Court 

Master yet. 

 

 Mr. Brannen explained the process of converting market rate units to affordable 

units, saying that it is very difficult to convince the owners of the units to do that and that it 

is very costly. He said that senior units can only make up 25% of the contribution, which 

they have done with Poplar Village. Mr. Kerecman asked why Middlebrook, Twinbrook 

and Continental Gardens have not been considered. Mr. Arbus said that they were 

constructed prior to 1980 and are not deed restricted, which is why they cannot be 

considered, although the Town felt that they had provided for the low and moderate 

income residents with those complexes. 

 

 Mr. Kerecman asked who will maintain the buffer zones that are proposed. Mr. 

Higgins said that a homeowners association must be established to maintain it.  

 

 Rick Isaacson, 19 Pal Drive, asked about the buffer zone and setbacks. Mr. Higgins 

said that the setbacks and buffers are not any less than what was proposed for the Apple 

Farm development. Mr. Isaacson asked if the buffer can be increased. Mr. Higgins said 

that he recommends minimums in his report, but that it is not likely to be increased.  

 

 Ken Ledwitz, 1218 West Park Avenue, asked about the rezoning. Mr. Arbus explained 

that people come to council meetings all the time with proposals. He said that when the 

first proposal came in with 500 units the town didn’t rezone for it because they felt it was 
an overdevelopment of the property.  

 

 Maureen Berman, 11 Lotus Court, asked about one of the properties sued under 

builder’s remedy. Mr. Arbus said that the developer proposed 240 units on 6 acres, at 12 

units per acre which would be the maximum allowed in the proposed plan. He said that 
the plan has not yet been accepted by the court. Ms. Berman asked if the proposed 

development would have to go through more studies. Mr. Arbus said yes, that it would 

have to satisfy drainage requirements. Ms. Berman said that when there is a flash flood, 

several of the houses around her cannot get out of their homes. Mr. Arbus said that there 

are other areas in town with much worse flooding. He said that the only thing taken into 

account is the water produced by that property. Ms. Berman asked about the traffic that 

would be generated onto West Park Avenue. Mr. Arbus said that there will be no ingress or 

egress onto West Park Avenue. Ms. Berman said that the township is becoming very 

congested and that she is looking to move. She said that COAH does not seem to make 

sense. Mr. Higgins said that if COAH were to go away the town would still have to provide 
the obligation due to the Constitution.  

 
 Tom Ross, 9 Northwoods Road, asked what the purpose is of the master plan. Mr. 

Higgins said that it is a broad based policy document to guide land use. He said that a 

municipality cannot have zoning without a master plan with a land use element. It must 

be re-examined at least every ten years. Mr. Ross said that a lot of people bought their  



Planning Board  Page 3   

Township of Ocean    January 8, 2014  

 

property based on the master plan ten years ago. He asked if the 50 foot buffer is enough 

space. Mr. Higgins said that it will be heavily vegetated.   

 

 Mr. Ross asked why they did not finalize on 75 units like the past application. Mr. 

Arbus said that nothing is finalized but that it was an opportunity to fulfill an obligation and 

that they would rather have 102 units than 114 units, but that the affordable units could be 

for people starting out with combined incomes of $75,000. He said that they will be 

integrated with the rest of the units.  

 

 Mr. Ross asked if it was fair to the property owners to have this development which 

willl devalue their homes. Mr. Brannen explained that years ago the town did not have this 

obligation but now they have to work towards their obligation or developers will try to 

build. Ms. Lonergan said that the Planning Board is planning for its future obligation. She 

explained that vacant land has potential for development.  

 

 Joyce Jaffee, 20 Brandywine, asked how they know what the impact will be on the 

area and how it is decided what number of units can go in without an impact. Mr. Higgins 

explained that you look at patterns and the surrounding areas, noting that things have 

changed substantially since 2001. He said that he does not think that this is a bad solution. 

Ms. Jaffee asked if they take into account infrastructure surrounding the property. Mr. 

Higgins said that there won’t be a negative impact on the surrounding area.  

 

 Scott Delaney, 1206 West Park Avenue, asked when the wetlands map was done. 

Mr. Fitzgerald said that there was a wetlands map done during the Apple Farms 

application. Ms. Wilensky said that the new applicant would have to submit one when 

they apply for site plan approval. Ms. Lonergan said that all state environmental 

regulations are considered and that COAH does not trump environmental regulations.  

 

 Mr. Delaney asked why they are building high density housing in an area where 

there are single family homes. He said that he does not see it as a feasible idea due to 

traffic. He asked if the Board and Council are really listening to how the residents of the 

town feel. Mr. Arbus said that they have listened to the concerns and that it is not final until 

the applicant makes an application to the Planning Board.  

 

 The Board took a break from 9:12 PM to 9:25 PM. 

  

 Ms. Lonergan recommended that Mr. Higgins include a statement with his report 

that this site be developed as an inclusionary development site, since it was 

recommended in the 2011 fair housing plan that it be included in the inclusionary zoning. 

Mr. Higgins agreed and said that that was the intent of his report, but that he will make a 

minor change in the language to be more specific. Ms. Lonergan explained that 

inclusionary development includes market rate, affordable and off-site affordable 

housing. 

 

 Mr. Isaacson asked what will happen should the Board vote against the Master Plan 

Re-examination. Mr. Arbus said that Toll Brothers can still continue to make an application. 

Ms. Wilensky said that the Council can do a re-zoning without a master plan re-

examination, or the developer could file for a use variance.  

 

 Mr. Kerecman asked if the current plan could meet the COAH obligation. Mr. Arbus 

said that it would be very costly to do the market-to-affordable conversions. 24 units would 

still be needed and it does not address Round 3 obligations. Mr. Kerecman suggested that 
they propose a zero option and say no to developers.  

 

 Steve Nelson, 11 Pal Drive, asked if the citizens would be objectively represented 

when the studies, such as traffic, do not hold true. Mr. Arbus said that residents have a 

right to hire counsel and professionals to represent them. 

 

 Chairman Goode carried the application to January 27, 2014. He said that each 

statement will be limited to 15 minutes per person.  

 



Planning Board  Page 4   

Township of Ocean    January 8, 2014  

 

 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at 10:00 P.M. ____________________ 

 Rachel Goncharko 

 Board Secretary 

 Recording Secretary 

 

 

 

 

  


